
Link to ECC Google Drive Folder: 
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1O1WlR0fADTNijRt13v3DU7k2FxwXDcGs?usp=sharing 

ENERGY AND CLIMATE COMMITTEE (ECC) 

AGENDA 

Wednesday, October 22, 2025 4:30 PM City Hall, 2nd Floor Conference Room 

Members: 
Timothy Murohy, Chair 
Paul Roth, Vice Chair 
Maureen Nebenzahl 
Gordon Leversee 
Councilor Bryan Lake 
Annu Joshi Bargale 
Clair Oursler 
Lisa Maxfield 

Steven Larmon 
Jake Pipp, Alternate 
Chuck Redfern, Alternate 
Rowland Russell, Alternate 
Catherine Koning, Alternate 

Staff: 
Megan Fortson, Planner 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

2. Approval of Minutes – September 24, 2025 

3. LES Solutions Conference - Report Out 

4. Report out from Eversource’s Main Streets Event 

5. NHSaves ButtonUp Workshop – Wednesday, November 5th from 6:00-7:30 pm at the Keene 
Recreation Center 

6. The White House Effect Film Screening – The Colonial Performing Arts Center Showroom 
at 20 Commercial St from 5:30 pm – 9:00 pm 

7. Community Power Outreach Materials 

8. Committee Budget Updates 

9. Work Groups Report Outs 
a. Outreach 
b. Policy 
c. Resilience 

10. New Business 

11. Next Meeting: Monday, November 24, 2025 at 4:30 pm 

1 of 14

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1O1WlR0fADTNijRt13v3DU7k2FxwXDcGs?usp=sharing
https://www.mobilize.us/lcvnh/event/850448/


DRAFT 

Page 1 of 8 

City of Keene 1 

New Hampshire 2 

3 

4 

ENERGY AND CLIMATE COMMITTEE 5 

MEETING MINUTES 6 

7 

Wednesday, September 24, 2025 4:30 PM 2nd Floor Conference Room, 
City Hall 

Members Present: 
Timothy Murphy, Chair 
Paul Roth, Vice Chair 
Councilor Bryan Lake 
Maureen Nebenzahl 
Annu Joshi Bargale (Remote) 
Gordon Leversee 
Jake Pipp, Alternate (Remote) 
Charles Redfern, Alternate 
Rowland Russell, Alternate (Voting) 
Catherine Koning, Alternate (Voting) 

Members Not Present: 
Steve Larmon 
Clair Oursler 
Lisa Maxfield 

Staff Present: 
Megan Fortson, Planner 
Mari Brunner, Senior Planner (left early) 

8 

1) Call to Order and Roll Call 9 

10 

Chair Murphy called the meeting to order at 4:32 PM. 11 

12 

Members of the public were present, including but not limited to Sam Jackson, Michelle Chalice, 13 

Carolyn Sweet, Peter Hansel, and Matt Boulton. 14 

15 

2) Approval of Minutes – August 27, 2025 16 

17 

Revision: Line 65, replace “solstice” with “equinox.” 18 

19 

A motion by Councilor Lake to adopt the August 27, 2025 minutes as amended was duly seconded 20 

by Vice Chair Roth and the motion carried unanimously. 21 

22 

3) Sustainability Coordinator Discussion 23 

[Agenda items 3 and 4 were heard out-of-order.] 24 

25 

2 of 14



ECC Meeting Minutes DRAFT 
September 24, 2025 

Page 2 of 8 

Chair Murphy welcomed Senior Planner, Mari Brunner, for this discussion. Dr. Koning noted that 26 

there had been some behind the scenes conversations about how to fund a Sustainability 27 

Coordinator position for the City. Dr. Koning and Matt Boulton of the Monadnock Sustainability 28 

Hub talked to Ms. Brunner about raising money from sources outside the City to fund the position. 29 

Dr. Koning said there was a potential lead for having one-third of the position funded by local 30 

business leaders, Zach Luse thought he could get one-third funded by private individuals, and the 31 

City would fund the final third. Dr. Koning said Ms. Brunner was working on the job description, 32 

but noted that the City had not provided an official signal that it could do this. 33 

34 

Ms. Brunner explained that the conversation about a Sustainability Coordinator began 35 

approximately one year prior. The former Energy and Climate Committee (ECC) Chair, Zach Luse, 36 

proposed the idea to the City Manager and Clean Energy Team, who were supportive. The City 37 

Council would have to approve of adding this position because it would affect the City’s budget. 38 

However, Ms. Brunner said this timing was early in the City’s budgeting process. So, she thought 39 

there was plenty of time for the ECC to bring a proposal forward to the City Council. Ms. Brunner 40 

suggested the Committee write a letter to the City Council, recommending the Sustainability 41 

Coordinator position, so the Council could decide ahead of the Budget process. 42 

43 

She recalled the ECC trying to propose this position in 2018 halfway through the Budget process 44 

and it was unsuccessful; the main problem was the timing. Ms. Brunner noted the City has the 45 

Community Power Fund that could be used to help cover the City’s share of funding this position. 46 

She explained that the fund was built over time and is intended to be used for local energy solutions 47 

projects and related matters. She added that the details of the position (i.e., pay grade) were still to 48 

be determined; Ms. Brunner was still drafting the job description. Once the ECC made its 49 

recommendation to Council, staff would be directed to draft the job description more formally based 50 

on the Budget, City match, and intended salary. 51 

52 

Ms. Nebenzahl asked if anyone currently on City staff could fulfill this position. Ms. Brunner said 53 

no, the staff already had a full workload and part of the issue was not having one person dedicated 54 

to this type of work; the work was dispersed among different roles. 55 

56 

Councilor Lake confirmed that before preparing a job description, Ms. Brunner suggested the 57 

Committee should present the high-level idea/details to the City Council, see how that would go, 58 

and then form the job description. Ms. Brunner agreed, adding that she hoped the City Council 59 

would then direct staff to work with the ECC to develop a proposal for the job description. She 60 

agreed that starting higher-level by presenting the concept of the position to the Council, perhaps 61 

with the first paragraph of a job description developed by the ECC, could be effective. Councilor 62 

Lake suggested that this could be a good project for the Policy Workgroup to work on before the 63 

October ECC meeting as opposed to making a motion at this meeting. 64 

65 

Dr. Russell asked for the optimal timeline of sending this letter to the Council. Ms. Brunner 66 

suggested submitting the letter before the end of the 2025 calendar year. She agreed the Policy 

3 of 14

67 



ECC Meeting Minutes DRAFT 
September 24, 2025 

Page 3 of 8 

Workgroup discussing the letter to Council before the October ECC meeting would work well for 68 

this timeline. 69 

70 

Mr. Redfern wondered if the City was tracking how much local citizens were saving annually on 71 

their bills from the Community Power Program. He said tracking that data would be a good 72 

representation of the City’s sustainability actions and savings, though it demanded staff time. When 73 

Mr. Redfern first joined the ECC a few years prior, he was assigned to determine whether 74 

AmeriCorps could help the ECC create a sustainability position within the City. Unfortunately, he 75 

found that the state of Maine has the means to be able to do this, but New Hampshire does not. 76 

77 

He explained that a sponsoring entity is required (e.g., the City of Keene) for an AmeriCorps 78 

Volunteer. He called it a great program and while he was not recommending it in this case, all the 79 

materials were gathered and provided to the Community Development Department for reference. 80 

He thought those could be useful in developing the Sustainability Coordinator job description. Dr. 81 

Russell agreed that there were materials available, so staff would not have to start from scratch on 82 

the job description. 83 

84 

Ms. Fortson asked for the approximate amount of money accrued in the Community Power Fund. 85 

Ms. Brunner said she had not received a recent update, but when the City Council debated the new 86 

round of the Community Power Program, there was ~$75,000 available. 87 

88 

Vice Chair Roth asked if this would be a full-time position. Ms. Brunner said yes if that was the 89 

ECC’s recommendation. She said it could be part-time, noting it could be harder to find someone 90 

to do this work part time. She added that if a current City employee was already doing this work 91 

part-time, this could be added to their job description to make them full-time. 92 

93 

Chair Murphy said the Committee did not need a motion at this time, only consensus for the Policy 94 

Workgroup and Committee to proceed with their planned actions. Chair Murphy noted that a 95 

Sustainability Coordinator could mean the potential for a lot more savings through the Community 96 

Power Program, he heard agreement, and he thought there would be opportunities to finesse that 97 

idea through upcoming discussions. Dr. Russell noted that he attended a few meetings and 98 

commented on the value of cities with similar sustainability positions for documenting these 99 

savings. 100 

101 

Chair Murphy called it an exciting opportunity that the Committee would be revisiting at the 102 

upcoming Policy Workgroup meeting (Councilor Lake, Ms. Nebenzahl, Dr. Russell, and Mr. 103 

Boulton) and ECC meetings. All materials and emails should go through Ms. Fortson. 104 

105 

4) Discussion with Mayor Kahn 106 

107 

Chair Murphy welcomed Mayor Jay Kahn for a discussion about Committee members’ overlapping 108 

memberships and potential conflicts of interest. The Mayor explained that he tries to carefully 109 

appoint Committee members in a way that avoids overlapping memberships that could cause 

4 of 14

110 



ECC Meeting Minutes DRAFT 
September 24, 2025 

Page 4 of 8 

conflicts during voting and plan creation, etc. He said that when it comes to topics of the 111 

environment/conservation, it was easy for those overlapping memberships and interests to arise, 112 

especially in a small city like Keene. Mayor Kahn said that if he was fortunate to have a second 113 

term as Mayor, he would be making committee appointments for two more years. He recognized 114 

that inevitably it would be hard to sustain the criteria for his nomination process, stating that his 115 

ethical standards are high. 116 

117 

The Mayor asked Committee members to check themselves during conversations. For example, if 118 

the Monadnock Sustainability Hub was interested in a collaboration with the ECC, which would be 119 

healthy and good, it would be the Committee’s responsibility to remain independent of that at 120 

meetings and in other forums and to recuse themselves from votes when necessary. He said the 121 

thoughts of one committee member could easily influence the thoughts of another, which is not 122 

ideal in these settings. The Mayor hoped Committee members would maintain independence and 123 

be conscientious of their potential conflicts of interest. 124 

125 

Dr. Russell asked if the Mayor was talking about conflicts with other City committees, between 126 

City committees and outside organizations, or both. Mayor Kahn said he was talking about an 127 

overlap between City committees and outside organizations. He thought that a concerning overlap 128 

on this Committee had been eliminated. The Mayor said it is Committee members’ responsibility 129 

to be aware of their potential conflicts. 130 

131 

Chair Murphy agreed that it is important to maintain those high standards. He welcomed the Mayor 132 

back any time to discuss this in more detail. The Mayor’s time was limited, so the question-and-133 

answer time was short, and he was not available to return in October. This was Mayor Kahn’s first 134 

ECC meeting and he was delighted to see so many people he knew in the room. 135 

136 

The Mayor urged everyone again to be cognizant of their potential conflicts when making 137 

Committee plans or motions/votes on funding requests involving outside entities. He said it was 138 

great that the Committee had participants who were interested in its topics. He recognized that the 139 

Committee had accomplished a great deal on the Community Power Plan and other projects. He 140 

thought this would be a great time for a check and refresh to ensure the Committee is doing the best 141 

thinking and is not on the verge of anything that could cause conflicts for members. 142 

143 

Megan Fortson, Planner, reminded everyone that during their new member orientations, the City 144 

Attorney taught them about Conflicts of Interest, and Ms. Fortson would provide documentation of 145 

the City’s policy again. If members ever see something upcoming on the agenda that they perceive 146 

as a potential Conflict of Interest, they should bring it to staff’s attention in advance to ensure that 147 

there will still be a quorum of members at the meeting for a vote. For example, if it were an item 148 

related to the Monadnock Sustainability Hub, Dr. Koning could recuse herself if needed. Ms. 149 

Fortson can keep track of those logistics to ensure quorum or consult with the City Attorney. Chair 150 

Murphy agreed that it was appropriate to share the Conflict of Interest rules with the Committee 151 

again, which Ms. Fortson said she would send out with the Rules of Procedure. 152 

153 

5 of 14



ECC Meeting Minutes DRAFT 
September 24, 2025 

Page 5 of 8 

5) Sun Day – Recap of Event on Sunday, September 21, 2025 154 

155 

Dr. Leversee reported that it was a perfect day for the event. Although everyone thought it was 156 

lightly attended for the whole day, it was the first time and there was a conflict with the Pride 157 

Festival downtown; there was a small influx from the Festival after it ended. Dr. Leversee 158 

appreciated Chair Murphy helping at the beginning and Dr. Koning helping set up the tent and run 159 

the table. Dr. Leversee reported that over 30 people visited the table during the event. The main 160 

attraction to the table was the free raffle; 21 visitors completed a survey for a chance to win two 161 

prizes: a hat with solar powered fans and a solar cell phone charger. 162 

163 

He said people were very engaged with the raffle. Mr. Redfern reported on helping with the second 164 

half of the event and breakdown. He said it was good to see the people who came and engaged with 165 

the ECC, so he called it a successful event. Next time, Mr. Redfern suggested having more chairs 166 

because he saw other booths with up to five chairs that were used substantially. Another problem 167 

was the conflict with traffic cut-off from Main Street and everyone using side streets. He did not 168 

suggest having this event coincide with other major City events; he did not think it needed to be on 169 

the equinox, Earth Day, etc. Mr. Redfern thought attendance would be more important. 170 

171 

Dr. Koning noted that the Monadnock Clean Energy Fair would be on September 27th at 172 

Peterborough Elementary School, sponsored by the Monadnock Sustainability Hub. The 2026 Fair 173 

would be in Keene again, and Dr. Koning suggested the ECC should co-sponsor during the years 174 

the event is held in Keene. She said the September 27th event would be much bigger than Sun Day, 175 

with more vendors. Dr. Koning suggested that during the years in Keene, the event could even be 176 

incorporated with the Pride Festival because she noticed there were parts of the Festival that were 177 

not just Pride related this year, so she thought maybe a section could be dedicated to Clean Energy. 178 

Ms. Nebenzahl agreed. 179 

180 

Dr. Leversee thanked Ms. Forton and City staff for their invaluable hard work organizing all the 181 

materials and revising the survey. Dr. Leversee added that many attendees were already aware of 182 

the event (i.e., not walk-ins) and indicated on the survey that they were positive about solar power 183 

and contemplating solar panels on their properties. He suggested a good place to reach a more 184 

general, curious population for solar tabling would be the Monadnock Speedway or a Swamp Bats 185 

game. Dr. Leversee suggested it as a thought for the future, noting it would be a lot of hard work. 186 

He distributed copies of the survey results to the Committee and suggested discussing them at the 187 

next meeting. Individual questions could be emailed to Dr. Leversee (do not email the whole 188 

Committee due to quorum concerns). 189 

190 

Chair Murphy recognized Peter Hansel with the Monadnock Sustainability Hub, who noted there 191 

was no control over the Sun Day venue and date, which were chosen by the organizer. 192 

193 

Ms. Fortson thanked all the Committee members who volunteered to transport and set up the 194 

materials in staffs’ absence. She noted that it helps City staff to have engaged Committee members 195 

who are willing to prepare for events. 

6 of 14

196 



ECC Meeting Minutes DRAFT 
September 24, 2025 

Page 6 of 8 

197 

6) Eversource Main Streets Event – Recap of Weeklong Event Held from September 8–198 

12 199 

200 

Ms. Fortson anticipated having an update on the number of businesses canvased or people taking 201 

advantage of the Liberty Utilities and Eversource NHSaves program. She had not received this 202 

information yet because the event was continuing through the end of October. Ms. Fortson would 203 

update the Committee at a future meeting or send an email. 204 

205 

7) Workgroups – Report-Outs from First Meeting 206 

A) Outreach 207 

208 

Mr. Redfern reported on the Workgroup’s idea to place an article in the Monadnock Shopper News. 209 

Dr. Koning provided Mr. Redfern with some ideas. Mr. Redfern said he had been delayed and 210 

talked to Mitch Shakour of the Shopper News, who recommended an article of between 300 and 211 

500 words, with the maximum being 700. Mr. Redfern felt that 500 words was appropriate and used 212 

AI to help check what he produced. The article would be printed in the Monadnock Shopper News 213 

on September 29th. 214 

215 

Ms. Koning commented on the Monadnock Sustainability Hub being committed to writing once 216 

per month, so she wasn’t sure if Mr. Redfern’s September 29th Shopper News article would be 217 

published using the Monadnock Sustainability Hub’s rotating system. She said with this, the 218 

Shopper would have two “Green Monadnock” columns. Mr. Redfern said he did not write much 219 

about the Monadnock Sustainability Hub, which related to the Mayor’s comments on delineating 220 

different public organizations. They agreed that Mr. Redfern’s article was only meant to outline the 221 

ECC’s work in Keene. 222 

223 

Mr. Redfern said he tried to include the logo Ms. Forton developed for the ECC stickers with the 224 

Monadnock Shopper News article as Committee branding. Mr. Shakour suggested a small 225 

advertisement in the Shopper News when it is time to publicize the updated community power rates. 226 

Mr. Shakour said he would provide a very reasonable rate because the Committee is a nonprofit. If 227 

reasonable, Mr. Redfern said he would pay for it himself to avoid bureaucracy. 228 

229 

Dr. Leversee recalled that Ms. Fortson helped confirm facts in Mr. Redfern’s draft letter to the 230 

Monadnock Shopper News. Dr. Koning was also involved, with a small paragraph on Community 231 

Power and some data from The Keene Sentinel. Dr. Koning pointed out that finding actual data on 232 

how many people participate in Keene Community Power and their levels of signing up on the City 233 

of Keene’s website was impossible, which she found concerning. She said AI could not find it on 234 

the City of Keene website either. Mr. Redfern said keeping the website updated and full of pertinent 235 

content would be something good for a Sustainability Coordinator to focus on. 236 

237 

B) Policy 238 

239 

7 of 14



ECC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
September 24, 2025 

Page 7 of 8 

Councilor Lake thanked Ms. Nebenzahl, Matt Boulton, and Peter Hansel for attending the 240 

September Policy Workgroup meeting. Councilor Lake recalled that Clean Energy New Hampshire 241 

recently updated its solar guidelines, which were not really targeted toward Keene’s already robust 242 

Land Development Code solar guidelines; he said it was still good to hear the updates that were 243 

available online. The Workgroup also reviewed emails and the Clean Energy NH policy tracking 244 

webpage that Ms. Forston sent to the Committee. Councilor Lake noted that for a few years, there 245 

had been a monthly meeting of other energy committees around New Hampshire (every third 246 

Thursday at 3:00 PM; the ECC had not been sending a representative). Councilor Lake was going 247 

to try to start attending. 248 

249 

The August meeting was about available grants and legislation on energy projects and September 250 

was about window dressers, for example. Councilor Lake said there was good information 251 

available, which sparked conversation for the Workgroup about whether to revisit the idea of 252 

hosting a window dressers event. He recalled the previous weatherization program that resulted in 253 

energy savings for residents in older buildings. The Workgroup could follow up with Zach Luse 254 

about the idea. Councilor Lake said the Workgroup also discussed the Sustainability Coordinator 255 

position and he thought the Group was prepared to discuss more in October. 256 

257 

Chair Murphy recognized Michelle Chalice of Keene, who really hoped the ECC would revisit the 258 

window dresser program. Ms. Chalice said one aspect of that program Councilor Lake did not 259 

mention was the huge volunteer component. Ms. Chalice stated that there is a community “knitting” 260 

aspect linked to energy efficiency. She could not speak highly enough of this program and said she 261 

talked about it all the time. Ms. Chalice would be willing to come to another meeting to discuss 262 

window dressers. 263 

264 

C) Resilience 265 

266 

Dr. Russell reported that the Resilience Workgroup met the week before this meeting to discuss 267 

how to organize as a workgroup. He noted that he would be responsible for the monthly report-outs 268 

to the ECC, and members of the workgroup would take turns facilitating their meetings. Dr. Russell 269 

said the next Resilience Workgroup meeting would focus more on specific topics and priorities. 270 

271 

Dr. Russell said this Group’s overarching intention would be to bring “Climate” back to the Energy 272 

and Climate Committee. There had been a lot of emphasis on energy for the prior several years and 273 

this Workgroup wanted to ensure a lot of emphasis on climate as well—from resilient infrastructure 274 

to resilient food systems. The Workgroup briefly discussed clarifying what “resilience” means 275 

within the context of climate, this Committee, and City of Keene; this will set the framework for 276 

topics that the Workgroup chooses. 277 

278 

Dr. Russell added that the intention of this Workgroup—if not this Committee—would also be to 279 

engage strongly with City staff, particularly the Public Works Department. The Resilience 280 

Workgroup would like to invite Public Works staff to its meetings. Lastly, the Workgroup would 281 

bring climate-related events in the community to the ECC’s attention. 

8 of 14

282 



ECC Meeting Minutes DRAFT 
September 24, 2025 

Page 8 of 8 

283 

Chair Murphy mentioned that Steve Larmon is also a member of this Workgroup. 284 

285 

Chair Murphy recognized Carolyn Sweet, who said Keene Housing was looking forward to 286 

engaging on the topic of community gardens, as well as working with the City toward installing 287 

standpipes to separate Keene Housing’s water usage. At this time, Keene Housing could not 288 

accurately measure its utility consumption of water and looked forward to being able to do so. Chair 289 

Murphy wondered if a Sustainability Coordinator could help the City better understand this. Ms. 290 

Sweet said yes, she had worked with the City of Wilmington previously through the Delaware 291 

Urban Farm Coalition on a grant program for things like that. She explained that they installed 292 

standpipes for community control gardens to increase food security and moved lateral stormwater 293 

infrastructure to meet multiple benefits in their proposed 2025 Comprehensive Plan. Chair Murphy 294 

noted that those were good things to have on the Policy Workgroup’s radar too. 295 

296 

As another member of the Resilience Workgroup, Chair Murphy’s standpoint was that the initial 297 

meeting was an organizational one. He said the Group had no shortage of subject matter/topic areas, 298 

so it would be challenging to be more strategic and not take on too much. Dr. Russell noted that the 299 

Workgroup shared the following materials with the ECC: the 2007 Climate Action Plan, the City’s 300 

2010 Master Plan, and the new 2025 Master Plan Pillar goals. He suggested that it would be 301 

important to reinforce the Pillar goals and different City Departments’ priorities related to climate 302 

and climate adaptation. Chair Murphy noted that Ms. Sweet created a digital folder with a lot of 303 

helpful information. 304 

305 

8) New Business 306 

307 

None presented. 308 

309 

9) Next Meeting: Wednesday, October 22, 2025 at 4:30 PM 310 

311 

Chair Murphy recognized Matt Boulton, who announced the Climate Café on October 23 at 6:30 312 

PM at the Keene Public Library on the topic of climate and finance with expert presenters. 313 

314 

10) Adjournment 315 

316 

There being no further business, Chair Murphy adjourned the meeting at 5:29 PM. 317 

318 

Respectfully submitted by, 319 

Katie Kibler, Minute Taker 320 

October 1, 2025 321 

322 

Reviewed and edited by, 323 

Megan Fortson, Planner 

9 of 14

324 



ButtonUP workshops sponsored by

Attend a NO-COST Home Energy Workshop

TAKE CARE OF YOUR
#1 INVESTMENT

Understand how your home functions as 
it relates to energy efficiency and what you 
can do to increase your in-home comfort 
while saving money and energy.

Learn about:
• Electricity savings
• Utility incentives
• Rebates on electric and gas appliances
• Home Energy Performance program
• Insulation and air sealing
• Energy audit and weatherization programs

Presented by Andy Duncan, Energy Trainer

Take the first step to 
add more comfort and 
value to your home.

Workshop Details 
At

plymouthenergy.o
rg/button-up

P.O. Box 753

300 Main Street

Plymouth, NH 03264

Wednesday, November 5, 2025
6:00–7:30 P.M., doors open at 5:30 P.M.

Keene Recreation Center, Room 22
312 Washington Street
Keene, New Hampshire

LOCAL PARTNERS:
Keene Clean Energy Team

City of Keene Energy and Climate Committee

10 of 14



C I T Y  O F  K E E N E  

C O M M U N I T Y  D E V E L O P M E N T  
Page 1 of 4 3 Washington Street 

Keene, NH 03431 
(603) 352-5440 
KeeneNH.gov 

KEENE COMMUNITY POWER 
Frequently Asked Questions 

WHAT IS “COMMUNITY POWER”? 

• Community Power is a State-authorized program that allows the City to bundle together the 

electricity needs of its residents / businesses and put out a bid for electricity suppliers to 

provide the necessary electricity at competitive prices. 

• Community Power programs serve as the default electricity supplier within the municipality 

and offer a vetted alternative to the utility’s default service and third-party electricity 

suppliers. 

• Eversource will continue to deliver electricity and manage all billing. The only change 

program participants will see will be the source and cost of electricity supply, chosen by the 

City of Keene, using a competitive bidding process. 

WHY IS KEENE OFFERING A COMMUNITY POWER PROGRAM? 

• With Community Power, communities can make strategic decisions about when to solicit 

bids, lock in fixed pricing for multiple years, and increase renewable energy content above 

the existing statewide minimum. 

• The goals of the Keene Community Power Program are: 

✔ More choice for electricity options 

✔ Control / stability of electricity costs 

✔ Competitive rates 

✔ Increase local renewable energy to help achieve the community’s adopted 100% 

renewable energy goals. 

• Keene’s program locks in stable, competitive rates to help residents, businesses, and others 

plan for and manage electricity expenses. 

• The program also offers four options with varying levels of renewable energy content to give 

people a range of choices, depending on their personal preferences and needs. 

• It is estimated that the first 2.5 years of the program avoided about 15.8 million pounds of 

CO2 due to the purchase of NH Class 1 renewable energy. The next contract (Dec 2025-Dec. 

2027) is expected to avoid about 19.4 million pounds of CO2. 

11 of 14



C I T Y  O F  K E E N E  

C O M M U N I T Y  D E V E L O P M E N T  
Page 2 of 4 3 Washington Street 

Keene, NH 03431 
(603) 352-5440 
KeeneNH.gov 

HOW MUCH WILL MY ELECTRICITY COST WITH THE KEENE COMMUNITY 

POWER PROGRAM? 

• Starting with meter reads in December 2025, and lasting through the meter read in 

December 2027 (2 years), the electricity options for Keene’s program will range from a cost 

of 11.2 cents per kilowatt-hour (kWh) to 13.9 cents per kWh. 

• For an “average” household that uses ~600kWh in a month, that comes out to about $66 to 

$83 per month. 

• To calculate how much your electricity supply will cost with each option, please go to 

keenecommunitypower.com/calculator and enter your monthly usage in kWh, which can be 

found on your utility bill. 

WHO CAN JOIN THE PROGRAM? 

• All electricity ratepayers in Keene including residents, small businesses, and others can join 

the program. 

• All customers eligible for automatic enrollment will receive a notification letter prior to 

enrollment. This letter will include all program details including program rates and how to 

participate. 

• Those who already have a third-party supplier can opt in to the program at any time. 

• If you live outside of Keene, please check with your municipality to see if your community 

has a program you can join. In addition, Cheshire County offers a program that any resident 

of the county can join, including Keene residents. 

WHAT PRODUCTS ARE OFFERED THROUGH THE PROGRAM? 

• The Program has four different products (see below) to provide you with the opportunity to 

select a specific balance of cost and renewable energy. You can compare monthly costs 

using the online calculator at www.keenecommunitypower.com/calculator. 

Term / Product 
Keene Basic 
(No extra RECs) 

Keene 10 
(10% extra RECs) 

Keene 50 
(50% total RECs) 

Keene 100 
(100% total RECs) 

Jun. 2023 – Dec. 
2025 (2.5 years) 

11.100 ¢/kWh 11.471 ¢/kWh * 12.050 ¢/kWh 13.900 ¢/kWh 

Dec. 2025 – Dec. 
2027 (2 years) 

11.220 ¢/kWh 11.58 ¢/kWh 12.100 ¢/kWh * 13.890 ¢/kWh 

* = default product (automatic enrollment) 

12 of 14

https://keenecommunitypower.com/calculator/
http://www.keenecommunitypower.com/calculator


C I T Y  O F  K E E N E  

C O M M U N I T Y  D E V E L O P M E N T  
Page 3 of 4 3 Washington Street 

Keene, NH 03431 
(603) 352-5440 
KeeneNH.gov 

HOW DO I JOIN OR LEAVE THE PROGRAM? 

• Joining the program: To join the program, use the “Enroll/Change” form available on the 

project website or call the supplier, Direct Energy, at (866) 968-8065. If you are already in the 

program, you do not have to do anything to stay in it. 

1. If you are using a third-party supplier, we recommend that you review your contract 

before joining the program to ensure you will not have to pay any fees for leaving early. 

• Leaving the program: To leave the program, use the “Opt-Out” form available on the project 

website or call the supplier, Direct Energy, at (866) 968-8065. You may leave the program at 

any time without penalty. 

• Switching Products: To switch to a different product, use the “Enroll/Change” form available 

on the project website or call the supplier, Direct Energy, at (866) 968-8065. 

• Re-joining the Program: If you leave the Program, you may re-join at any time; however, the 

supplier may offer you a price that reflects market conditions at the time. The supplier will 

ask you to confirm any such price before you are enrolled. 

HOW MUCH DOES THE PROGRAM COST THE CITY AND TAXPAYERS? 

• The Keene Community Power program is self-funded through the revenues received by 

participating customers. 

• There is no direct cost to the city or to taxpayers; however, there are some indirect costs 

associated with staff time spent managing the program. 

WHAT IF I HAVE SOLAR? 

• For residential customers that participate, those on Net Energy Metering 1.0 (or “Standard”) 

would continue to receive the same value for their generation as today; however, those on 

Net Energy Metering 2.0 (or “Alternative”) would receive less value for their generation than 

today. 

• There are additional factors to consider, and we highly encourage each net metering 

customer to make their own decision. Please see our detailed Net Metering FAQ to help with 

your decision, available online at www.keenecommunitypower.com. 

WHAT IF I PARTICIPATE IN THE ELECTRICITY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM? 

• Customers who receive a discount on their electricity bill through the Electric Assistance 

Program (EAP) will continue to receive their benefits. 

• Budget billing customers will continue to receive budget billing for the Delivery Services 

portion of the bill. 

13 of 14

https://keenecommunitypower.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/Net-Metering-Summary_Keene-Apr-24-2023.docx.pdf
http://www.keenecommunitypower.com/


C I T Y  O F  K E E N E  

C O M M U N I T Y  D E V E L O P M E N T  
Page 4 of 4 3 Washington Street 

Keene, NH 03431 
(603) 352-5440 
KeeneNH.gov 

WHO OPERATES AND MANAGES THE PROGRAM? 

• The Community Power Program is governed by the Keene Community Power Plan, adopted 

by Keene City Council and approved by the NH PUC. This plan designates oversight and 

management of the Plan to the City Manager. 

• The City has hired a consultant team, consisting of a local NH company (Standard Power) 

and a national company with extensive experience running similar programs in other states 

(Good Energy). The consultant team manages certain activities under the program, including 

managing the supply procurement process, public engagement, interacting with Eversource, 

and monitoring the supply contract. 

• The competitive supplier, Direct Energy, provides power for the program as well as customer 

support including staffing a toll-free number for customer questions 

14 of 14

mailto:patrick@goodenergy.com
mailto:allison.mcneill@goodenergy.com
mailto:support_nh@goodenergy.com
mailto:r.polson@standardpower.com

	‎K:\Boards\Energy & Climate Committee\Scanned Packets\ECC_Meeting_Packets_2025\10 - October\2025_10_22_ECC_Agenda.pdf‎
	‎K:\Boards\Energy & Climate Committee\Scanned Packets\ECC_Meeting_Packets_2025\10 - October\2025_09_24_ECC_Minutes_Edited.pdf‎
	‎K:\Boards\Energy & Climate Committee\Scanned Packets\ECC_Meeting_Packets_2025\10 - October\Keene-ButtonUP-Flyer.pdf‎
	‎K:\Boards\Energy & Climate Committee\Scanned Packets\ECC_Meeting_Packets_2025\10 - October\Keene Community Power FAQ_2025 Renewal_10-14-25.pdf‎

